United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

NINTH SESSION
Official Records

THIRD COMMITTEE, H78th

MEETING

Tuesday, 9 November 1954,
at 10.50 a.m.

New York

CONTENTS

Page
Agouda item 38
Divaft international covenants on human rights {continned) 179

Chairman: Mr, Jiti NOSEK (Czechoslovakia).

AGENDA ITEM 58

Draft international eovenants on bLhnman rights
{A/2714, A/26806, chapter V, section I, E/2573,
A/C.3/574, A/C.3/L.410) (continued)

FimsT READING {SECOND PART)

1. Mr. GAMARRA (Urugnay) emphasized how Im-
portant it was that the final drafting of the covenants
should be completed. As the Tsrael and Brazilian rep-
resentatives had said, the time had come to pass from
staterments of principle to the drafting of juridical texts.
The Uruguavan delegation had submitted 3 proposal
(E/2573, annex 111) concerning the implementation of
the covenants; for if there was to bhe international
supervision guaranteeing to every individual the ef-
fective enjovment of the specified rights, explicit pro-
visions were necessary. The question of the procedure
to be adopted n thar connexion was truly a question
of substance, since a vight whose exercise was not safe-
guarded lost any real meaning.

2. In the memorandum it had submitted on the main
aspeets of the proposal for the establishment of an Of-
fee of the United Nations High Commissioner (At-
torney-Gzeneral) for Human Rights (A/C3/564), the
Urugunayan delegation had pointed oot that the idea
of that proposal was in itz cssentials a simple one. A
represenfative of the international community, of the
Lighest standing and asthority, would recelve petitions
from individuals or organizations relating fo any viola-
tions of the covenants; he would undertake their pre-
Himinary examination and investigation, would seek to
find satisfactory solutions through negotiation with the
States concerned and, 1f necessary, would present the
case hefore the United Nations organ competent fo
rale on the sulstance of the guestion. That would over-
come the difficulty raised by the existing differences on
the aueshion whether an individual was or was not a
subject of internatiomal law. According to traditional
ductrine, only States comld plead Lefore an interna-
tiemal conrt: on the other hand, some maodern authors
considered that the individual was a subject of inter-
national law, That problont wonld not arise W con-
nexion with the Attorney-General since he would rep-

P 8ec Official Records of the General Arsembly, Sixtl Ses-
sian, Alnseres, agends ftem .

resent the United Nations, which the International
Court of Justice had defined 1n 1ts advisory opinion
of 11 April 19497 as an international person, a subject
of international law, capable of possessing international
rights and duties, and as having capacity to maintain
its rights by Dbringing international claims, In its
memorandum, the Uruguavan delegation had explained
bath the drawbacks of the other methods and the ad-
vantages offercd by the methods it was proposing,

3. In paragraph 72 of his work Lae Dédlaration uni-
verselle et la mise en ouwre des droits de Fhomme, Mr,
René Cassin had said that the appointment of an
attorney-general was not absolutely necessary, but that
the establishiment of the organ proposed by Uroguay
would coniribute to the development of international
law and would help to resolve a number of practical
dificulties. Mr. Cassin had emphasized how nseful it
would be for an impartial third party to intervene
between the States and the individual, and had enlarged
on the services which the proposed Office would render
by acting as 2 clearing-house for petitions, screening
them and submitting them on its own responsibility
o the haman rights commitiee,

4. The Urugmayan delegatiom had explained that the
Attornev-General would exercise functions somewhat
simifar to those of the public prosecutor in national
fegal systems since, for cxample, he would represent
the international community and not the complainants,
The comparizen should not however be pushed too far.
The Attorney-General’s task would primarily be one
of conciliation, and his sugpested title, Attorney-
General in Enghsh, Fiseal General in Spanish, should
not be allowed to create any false impression in that
CONAENIoNn.

-

5. Mr. Gamarra wished to supplement the arguments
put forward by the Ursguayan delegation in its
memorandun, [f the draft covenmnts were adopted as
they stood {15/2573, annex 1), without provision for
an  Attorney-General’s Office, an  individual whose
rights were invaded would be required, under article
40 of the draft covenant on civil and pohtical rights,
to find a State which would agree to deiend his in-
terests, He would only be able to turn to official au-
thorities, whose attitude would depend on a mumber
of circnmstances which were casy to imagine. The
Fevadorian reprezentative had very rightly observed
thot the geperal rule would T inaction: it would be
ahsird for the State divectly concerned to complain
against itzelf, and no other Goveramoent would willingly
undertake tn defend the cause of a foreigner. That
system would Le harmifol 1o the vichm, to the Sate
accused, to the State asked to intervene and o the in-
ternational commmmiy. The complabnant wonild be

Farafion {or furics suflveed in Hie service of the United
FNatiens, Adwisery Optuion, LOJ. Reporty 1919, p. 174,

A/C.3/SR.578



180 General Assembly—Ninth Session—Third Committce

obliged to appeal to a powerful State or to a Govern-
ment which was on bad terms with the accused State.
The necessary atmosphere of impartizlity would
probably suffer from such a sitwation. The Uruguayan
delegation regarded that system as an inevizable source
of frictions and conflicts. On the other hind, an At-
torney-Greneral’s Office, if it existed, would be an im-
partial, specialized and competent organ, accustomed
to acting as an arbitrator between States and would
be able if the complaint was well founded, to avoid any
complication, either hy finding a compromise solution
or by referring the matter to the human rights com-
mittee. Intervention by the Attornev-Genera! in the
domestic affairs of a State would he less serious than
intervention hy another State,

5. The mode of appointment of the Attoriey-General
woukl give him the standing of a high magistrate; and
the procedure he would have to follow woull be similar
to that provided for under article 43 of the draft cove-
nant on civil and political rights, and world thus en-
sure that his decisions would be just. Such dangers as
might legitimately be apprehended would not come
from the proposed technical formula: they vrould reside
in the veritable revolution represented by the establish-
ment of an ahsolutely new control organ. Bt Urngnay
had wished as far as possible to obviate any difficulties,
The legislator should be cantious, realistic, and con-
cerned with the practical consequences of his decisions;
that threefold requircment was met by the dralt sub-
mitted, which embadied a simple, relialble, end efficient
procedure for ensuring the real implementation of hu-
man rights, It might be noted that the International
J.aw Commission had applied the principle underlying
the Uruguayan propesal by providing, in article 11,
paragraph 1, of the two draft conventions on state-
lessness, that the Contracting Parties should under-
take to establish, within the framework of the United
Nations, an agency to act, when it deemed appropriate,
on behzlf of stateless persons before Governments or
before the tribunal referred to in paragragh 2.

7. With regard to the other important provisions of
the draft covenants, the Uruguayan delegat:on was op-
posed to the so-called federal and colonial clauses,
both of which would make for juridical inequality be-
tween the contracting parties. In addition, a federal
State should, by definition, be regarded in its relations
with cther countries as o whole; and so far as the Non-
Seli-Governing Territories were concerned, their posi-
tton made international control particularly 1ccessary if
respect for human rights was to he ensured “wvithin their
boundaries.

8 Lastly, Uruguay was opposed to the acceptance
of any reservations; the covenants would be in the na-
ture of treaty-laws, and it was therefore essential that
their contents should be uniform and that all their
provisions should be simultaneously and immediately
applied.

PROCEDURAL PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY
(A/C3/1.410) (continued)

0. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) submitted the
amendments (A/C.3/1.411) which his delcgation was
proposing to the Costa Rican drait resoluticn (A/C.3/
[.410).

Costa Rica

8 3Sec Official Records of the General Assembly, Ninth Ses-
ston, Supplement No, 9, para. 25,

10. The object of the first amendment was accuracy :
the Committee had completed the general discussion and
had already started on the second part of the first read-
ing; the existing text, which mentioned only “a geueral
debate at the ninth session”, was therefore wrong.

11, With regard to the second proposed modification,
he considered that the English word “initial” was super-
fluons ; it would be sufficient to say that the Third Com-
mittee should devote its meetings to a discussion of the
draft covenants.

12, Lastly, the Afghan delegation thought it essential
to specily that the Committee should procecd “article
by article”; in any event, that was the only method
it would he uble t¢ apply at the next session, since the
first reading, including a general deate, would be over
by then. Besides, the preamble of the draft resolution
provided for the possibility of Governments submitting
amendments ; and such amendments could refer only to
individual articles.

13. He would vote for the dralt resolution (A/C.3/
L.410) if the amendments he proposed were approved.

+. Mr. NUNEZ (Costa Rica) said that in the Span-
sl text of the Costa Rican draft resolution the words
i stniposio que contenga in paragraph 2 of the opera-
tive part should be replaced by the words una com-
pilaciin de,

15. e accepted the first amendinent proposed by
Afgharistan,

16.  With regard to the second modification proposed,
it appeared that the English version did not corres-
pond to the Spanish original, which contained no ad-
jective equivalent to “initial”. He had merely wished to
specily that at the tenth session the Third Commitiee
should start with the draft covenants, and should deal
with that item bhefore any other, If the intentions of
the Afghan delegetion corresponded to his own, he
was prepared to accept the amendment and to modify
the Spanish text zccordingly. '

17. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) thought that the
ward “initial” in the English text should be deleted ;
paragrzph 3 of the operative part would then mean
that the Committee’s mectings during the tenth scssion
wauld be devoted to o detailed discussion of the draft
covenants. The Committee should start with such a dis-
cussion and should continue article by article until the
end. 1T necessary, the whole session could be devoted
to the draft coveranrs; for the Third Committee it
would be a sessien of human rights. It was for those
reasons that Afghanistan had proposed the second
amendment,

18. Mr. NUREZ (Costa Rica) accepted the second
Alghan amendment. He also accepted the third amend-
ment, in order to meet the point made by the Afghan
delegation.

19. Ile thought it might perhaps be advisable in ad-
dition to provide for the participation of non-govern-
mental organizations in the discussion. A paragraph to
that effect might be added to the operative part of the
draft resolution ; indeed, emphasis might be laid in the
preambie on the importance of public approval for the
future of the covenants. He had not thought it advisable
to include a formal provision to that effect in the draft
resolution without hearing the Committee's views on
the matter.



578th meeting—9 November 1954 181

20. Miss BERNARDINQ (Dominican Republic)
drew the Committee’s attention to the effect of the sec-
ond Afghanistan amendment. The Committee was re-
quired to examine afl problems referred to it by the
Leonomic and Social Council in its report. If the Com-
mittee devoted its tenth session to the examination of
the drait covenants, it would not be able to discuss
other important social questions, and that would he
regrettable.

21, Mr. JUVIGNY (France) paid a tribute to the
conciliatory spirit shown by the representative of Costa
Rica, who had talken into account the observations made
at the preceding meeting.

22. Replying to the representative of the Dominican
Republic, he said that his delegation saw no reason
why the next session of the Committee should not be
devoted to the draft covenants on human rights; how-
ever, since new social problems might arise in the
meantime, it might perhaps be advisable to insert after
the word “meetings” in paragraph 3 of the operative
part the words “and in any case most of the time at
the disposal”.

23. He thought that the expression “article by article”
would tie the General Assembly’s hands too tightly.
It implied that the articles would have to be discussed
in the order in which they appeared in the draft cove-
nants. But various articles were clogely connected and
ought to be examined simultaneously. Moreover, there
was no article on the question of reservations, the
Commission on Human Rights having left it to the
General Assembly to take a decision in the matter.
The expression “article by article” might therefore
be interpreted too narrowly and he suggested that it
should be replaced by the words “to a discussion . . .
of the provisions of the draft covenants. .7,

24. Mr. MENDFEZ (Philippines} could not agree
that paragraph 3 of the operative part should make
any reference to the “initial meetings” of the Third
Committee being devoted to a detailed discussion; un-
der normal patliamentary procedure the members of a
Committee canld not give directives to members who
would be sitting at the following session. Moreover,
thers was no certainty that at the next session the
Committee would wish to begin its wark with the dis-
cussion of the draft covenants., Accordingly, he thought
it would le preferable simply to say “Decides that the
Third Committee, at its tenth session, shall take up a
detailed diseussion of the drait covenants. . .”,

25, Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) thought it would be
hetter at the current stage not to go into too many de-
tails conecerning the work of the Third Committee at
the next session. However, a decisiom had to be taken
on genera! principles. All delegations wished the Com-
mittee (o adopt the draft covenants as soon as possible,
but adoption should be preceded by a discussion article
Iy arficle and a vote on each article. The aim of the
Committee’s work, that is, the adoption of the draft
covenants, should therefore be clearly stated in the
dralt resolution. If at its next session the Committee
completed the examination of the dralt covenants and
adaped them, there was ahsolutely no reason why it
shimlil not talke up other questions hefore the end of
the session.

2. 1le therefore proposed the addition to the end
of paragraph 3 of the operative part of the draft reso-

lution (A/C.3/L.410) of the words “with a view to
their adoption, if possible, at that session™.

27. Mr. DUNLQOP (New Zealand) entirely approved
of the realistic position taken by the French representa-
tive. It was obvious that the Committee was not yet
prepared to establish a rigid procedure for its future
work. As the Egyptian representative had rightly ob-
served at the 571st meeting, the success of the cove-
nants depended primarily on the extent to which world
public opinion would be prepared to accept them; they
should not, therefore, e hastily adopted before public
opinion had been won over. Accordingly, Mr. Dunlop
agreed to the words suggested by the French rep-
resentative for paragraph 3 of the operative part. There
should be no bar to the inclusion of questions other
than those relating to the draft covenants in the agenda
for the next session. He preferred the word “provisions”
to the words “article hy article”, which he interpreted
in the same way as the French representative. It might
perhaps even be necessary, for example, to begin the
discussion of the draft covenants with the question
of reservations or that of petitions.

28. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) said that the
members of the Committee had the choice between two
alternatives: either to adopt an easy solution so as
te obtain the greatest possible number of votes, or, on
the contrary, to adhere to certain principles and en-
deavour to solve the problems involved, in the hope of
ultimate success. He himseli always took the sccond
course. The sole purpose of his amendments had been
to facilitate the Committee’s work. In his opinion, the
Committee should decide immediately on the precise
nature of its work during its next session, so that the
delegations might inake their arrangements in good
time. With regard to the observations of the Dominican
representative, he wished to sav that he was fully aware
of the importance of the other social questions with
which the Committee had to deal, but he thought
that any delay in solving the fundamental problem of
the draft covenants on human rights would he an
obstacle to the settlement of those questions. The New
Zealand representative had referred to world public
opinion; Mr. Pazhwak had in no way overlooked that
factor, to which he, too, attached great importance.

29. In reply to the French representative’s objcctions
to the expression “article by article”, he pointed out
that in proposing it, he had in no way rejected the
possibility of discussing the various articles irrespective
of their ovder m the draft covenants. He had proposed
the addition of the words “article by article” to para-
graph 3 of the operative part because he considered that
the words “detailed discussion” were not sufficiently
precise; besides, no one had yet tried to define them.

30. Mr. NUREZ (Costa Rica) said that the draft
resolution he had submitted (A/C.3/L.410) was not his
unaided work; it had been drafted on the basis of unof-
ficial talks he had had with other represcntatives,

3l. With regard to the comments made by the
Doniinican representative, he poinited out that the
solution of the various guestiony that might be sub-
mitted to the Committee for consideration at its next
sesgion would in any case he contingent to a greatar or
lesser extent on the adoption of the draft covenants on
human rights; for instance, the solution of the prablem

of forced labour would be facilitated if Statcs were

bound by the obligations laid down in the covenants,



182 General Assembly—Ninth Session—Third Committce

The same applied to the problems connect:d with the
status of women. Moreover, at the next session the
General Assembly might appoint an ad hoc committce
to consider the dralt covenants; that would enable
the Third Committec to take up the other .tems on ils
agenda. Such a committee could be zet up under rule
9% of the rules of procedure, as the Israel representa-
tive had pointed out at the preceding meeting.

32. In conclusion, Mr. Nufiez proposed thzt the words
“first and foremost” should be added to operative para-
graph 3 of the draft resolution, which sheuld also be
amended to include the suggestions made by the French
and Lebanese representatives. Paragraph 3 would then
read:

“Decides that the meetings of the Third Com-
mittec at the tenth session shall be devoted first and
foremost to o detaiied discussion of the provisions of
the draft international covenant on human rights with
a view to their adoption, if possible, at that session.”

33, Mr., MENDEZ (Philippines) peintedl out that
there had heen a gencral discussion of the draft cove-
nants in the Committce, but that they had never been
given a first reacing, that is, a reading ardicle by ar-
ticle, according to normal parliamentary procedure. The
Committee's main task was to consider the draft cove-
nants and no more imporiant question could be
imagined in existing circumstances, In order to take
those considerations into account, Mr, Meéndez proposed
that paragraph 3 of the operative part should be
amended to read as {ollows:

“Decldes that, at the meetings of the Third Com-
mittee during the tenth session, high priority should
be given to the discussion of the draft ir ternational
covenants on human rights article by article.”

34, Miss BERNARDINO(Dominican Rejublic)said
that the Costa Rican representative’s argument was not
valid. Even if the covenants were adopted at the tenth
session of the General Assembly, they woild not be
ratified or come into force immediately, Ir any case,
the Third Committee could not devote the entire tenth
session to a consideration of the covenants, as it had
to consider all the social questions raised in the Eco-
nomic and Social Council’s report. It could of course
devote the greater part of its time to a coisideration
of the covenants, but it should not on that account
neglect other items submitted to it, which were also
very important,

35. Miss MANAS (Cuba) confirmed that, as she had
repeatedly stated, her delegation tock a de:p interest
in the draft international covenants on human rights.
36. The current discussion had been very useiul; it
had shown that the Costa Rican draft resolu-ion would
be generally acceptable if paragraph 3 of the operative
part were amended slightly. She therefore prcposed that
delegations which had proposed amendments, whether
in writing or orally, should meet unofficially to draft
a combined text. The Costa Rican and other delegations
—for example, those of Cuba and Ecuador, which had
suggestions to make—could of course also take part in
the unofficial consultations,

37. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) pointed out that
the new text the Costa Rican representative had pro-
posed for paragraph 3 hardly altered the meaning of
the original text, The expression “detailed onsidera-
tion of the provisions of the draft covenants” was not
any more specific than “detailed conmsideration of the

draft covenants™ ; all that was said in either case was that
the content of the draft covenants would be considered.
It should be clearly indicated that the drait covenants
would be considered article by article; that did not
mean, in spite of what some representatives had sug-
gested, that the articies should be taken up in numerical
ordcr.

38, The Philippine repregentative’s suggestion was not
a solution, but a palliative. The expression “high
priority” couldl be interpreted in various ways and had
already been wrongly interpreted. The meaning should
be clarified by saying for instance: “will give a high
priorit}-—, by iniiiating its work . . . and dnvotiﬂg its
meetings . "

39. With regard to the Dominican representative’s
comments. the Comumittee obviously could not devote
all its time to consideration of the draft covenants.
Consideration of the draft covenants should be the
Committee’s main task during the tenth session, but
that would not prevent the Committec irom taking up
other questions that might be referred 1o it. The Com-
mitiee would adopt the procedure it considered most
appropriate in dealing with its agenda in due course,
in the light of the time at its disposal. The essential
point was that the Committec should respect its own
decision and consider the draft covenants first of all,

40. None of the arguments he had heard had con-
vinced him that he should withdraw his amendment,
which consisted of adding the words “article by article”
to paragraph 3 of the operative part. If the Committec
was not to condenm itself to hearing the same state-
ments of principle and the same general remarks over
2gain, it would have to take a defnite decision to con-
sider the drait covenants article by article at its tenth
session; unless it wanted to beat about the bush and
retard the adoption of the covenants, there was no
other solution.

41, Mr, NUNEZ (Costa Rica), taking into account
as far possible all the comments and suggestions that
had bheen made during the discussion, proposed that
operative paragrapb 3 of his draft resolution should be
replaced by the following text:

“Resolves that, at the meetings of the Third Com-
mittee during the tenth session, priority should be
given to the detailed discussion of the draft inter-
national covenants on human rights, article by article,
with a wview to their adoption at that session if
possible.”

42. Mr. AZKOUL (lLebanon) thought that the pur-
port of his proposal had not been understood by all
delegations; in his opinion, it would provide ali the
guarantees required by those who wanted the draft
covenants to be adopted as quickly as possible. The
purpose of his proposal was to define the aim that the
Committee should set itself, namely, if possible, to adopt
the draft covenants during the tenth session of the
General Assembly, Given that aim, it was hardly nec-
essary to decide at once how the Committee should
proceed in order to reach it.

43. He felt that at the tenth session the Committee
should devote itself as far as possible to a consideration
9f the, draft covenants, but some latitude should be leit
it to organize its work at the time in the light of the
existing situation. He thercfore formally nroposed that
paragraph 3 of the operative part of the Costa Rican
draft resolution should be maintained, with the addition



578th meeting—9 November 1954 183

of the words: “with a view to their adoption at that
session, if possible”.

44, Mr., MENDEZ (Philippines) thought that the
text proposed by the Costa Rican representative should
be generally acceptable, since it tock account of the
amendment submitted by the Lebanese representative
and also of the amendments and suggestions proposed
by other delegations,

45. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) thanked the
Costa Rican representative for proposing a text which
included all the propesed amendments and answered
all the objections that had been made, Ie would vote
for the new text.

46. Mrs. AFNAN (Iraq) pointed out that the second
paragraph of the preamble enabled Govermments to
formulate further observations and amendments with
regard to the drait covenants. She asked whether that
meant that Governments in favour of combining the
two covenants could still propese such a solution,

47. Mr. NUSNEZ (Costa Rica) said that in the ob-
servations they formulated, Governments counld quite
well raise the question of the number of draft covenants,

43. Mr. BAROODY (Saudi Arabia) was surprised
that a further *sub-division of the covenants was still
being entertained. Although the majority agreed that
the instruments should bhe adopted quickly, there were
some who wished to complicate the situation. A single
draft covenant had been prepared originally, and then
it had been necessary to agree to a second; he asked
wlhether an altempt was being made to arrange for
a third covenant, which would, he supposed, be on the
right of self-determination,

49. If that were so, the procedure for considering the
dralt covenanis would be unduly complicated. Further-
more, there did not seem to be any reason to draft a
separate covenant on the right of self-determination.
It had been proved that the exercise of that right was
a prerequisite to the exercise of the other human rights,
He wondered whether the explanation of the manceuvre
did not lie in the fact that some delegations that were
ardent supporters of the right of scli-determination
feared that the draft covenants as they stood would not
be adopted if they included such a right.

50. Whatever the attitude of certain Yowers, the
Unitedd Nations could not draw up a separate covenant
on the right of self-determination. He reserved the right
to speak at greater length on the indivisibility of the
drait covenants.

51. Mr. NUREZ (Costa Rica) pointed out that he
had only replied very briefly to a question [rom the
Iraqi representative and that he had said and suggested
nothing with regard to a third draft covenant.

52, Mr. BAROODY (Saundi Arabia) agreed. He lad
anly spolicn because he had wanted to prevent the
emergence of a sitnation that might he exploited in the
future,

53. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the representa-
tives of Lehanon and Costa Rica should agree on a
final text for paragraph 3 of the operative part of the
Costa Rican draft resclution (A/C.3/1.410).

54. Mr. AZKOUL (lLebanon) withdrew his amend-
ment, since the last text proposed by the Costa Rican
representative seemed likely to gain general support.

The meeting rose at 1.10 pan,

Printed in U.S.A.

S 1205]1—December 1934 1,850





